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REGISTERED MAIL 

IN THE MATTER OF THE ONTARIO HERITAGE ACT, R.S.O. -
1990, CHAPTER 0.18; 

Clerk's Department 
Corporate Services Commission 

----==· 
rm~~oo uoo~~~ij,~!lID 

2 1 -07- 2004 
_______ ,.. ______ _ 

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE LAND AND PREMISES IN PLAN 2196 PT LOT 
12 RP 64R8504 PT 2, KNOWN MUNICIPALLY AS 31 HELEN AVENUE, TOWN 
OF MARKHAM, IN THE PROVINCE OF ONTARIO. 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO DESIGNATE 

TO: Ontario Heritage Foundation 
1 O Adelaide Street East 
Toronto, ON M5C 1J3 
Attn: Catherine Axford, Chairman's Executive Assistant 

.. 
TAKE NOTICE THAT the Council of The Corporation of the Town 
of Markham intends to designate the property, including land and 
building, known municipally as 31 Helen Avenue, Markham, as a 
property of architectural and/or historic interest or value under Part 
1 V of The Ontario Heritage Act, R.S.O. 1990, Chapter 0.18. 

A Statement of the Reasons for the Proposed Designation of 
James Brander House, is attached. 

NOTICE OF OBJECTION to the designation may be served on the 
Town Clerk within thirty (30) days, or before 4:30 p.m. on the 19th 
day of August 2004. 

Sheila Birrell, Town Clerk 
The Town of Markham 
101 Town Centre Boulevard 
Markham, ON L3R 9W3 

July 20, 2004 

The Corporation of The Town of Markham • 101 Town Centre Boulevard, Markham, Ontario L3R 9W3 
Website: www.marl<ham.ca • Tel: 905-475-4744 • Fax: 905-479-7771 
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J a1nes Brander House 

STATEMENT OF REASONS FOR DESIGNATION 
' 

The Jarnes Brander house is reco1nrnended for designation under Part N of the Ontario 
Heritage Act as a property of cultural heritage value or interest containing the following 

heritage attributes: 

Historical Attributes 

The house located at 31 Helen Avenue was built on land originally granted by patent in 
1816 to Johan Englehardt Helmke (1750-1835). Johan (or Johrt} and his five year old 
son, Francis, were passengers on the ship Catharina that sailed from Ge1111any and later 
docked at Philadelphia on August 3, 1792. Helmke is credited by Willia ,n Berczy with 
discovering the shortage of drinking water on board, which forced the ship to stop at 
Newport Rhode Island to replenish the water supply before finally landing in 
Philadelphia. Johan must have married Mary Stoeber (Stiver 1776 -1855) shortly after 
a,·riving in the U.S. since she appears on the census of 1803 with three more children. 
Helmke, one of the original Berczy settlers, played a prominent role during the migration 
to the Genesse· Valley and subsequently to Markham. . 

• 

Johan and Mary Helmke settled in Markham after having drawn Lot 8, Concession 6 in 
1794. This parcel was part of the original grant to the Ge1·1nan Land Company. In 1815 
Helmke also petitioned for Lot 9, Concession 6, but this was not approved. When Berczy 
and some of his followers had a falling out over the terms and conditions by which the 
settlers had been brought to North America, Johan was one of those sued by Berczy. 

The Markham Township census of 1803 lists [Johan] Engelhardt (aged 48) with his wife 
Mary Stiver (aged 26) and four children, Francis, John, Anna, and Mary living on this 
200 acre parcel. The east lh of the lot, consisting of 100 acres, was sold to their son, 
Jotrn, in 1827. In 1833, John sold the west lh of the east lh to Henry Hel111ke. 

With.respect to the west 100 acres, in 1833 Johan sold 28 acre~ to his oldest son, Francis. 
In 1836 the south part o·f the west 1h of l.ot 8 (the site of the existing .house), which 
consisted of 72 acres, went to another of Johan Englehardt's sons, Josiah (b. 1812). Both 
Walton's Directory of 1837 and Brown's Directory of 1846-1847 show Josiah living on 
Lot 8, Concession 6. Josiah fa1·n1ed this section before selling it in 1849 to Williarn 
Whiteoak for 517 pounds. After the sale of the property it appears that Josiah and his 
wife Amy (Badgerow) moved to Malahide Township in Elgin County where he 
purchased 100 acres. In 1860 Francis Helmke still owned about 28 acres in the west V2 of 
this original lot (north part of the west V2), but resided on Lot 18, Concession 2, near the 

village of Richmond Hill. 
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The census of 1851 lists Willia1n Whiteoak (b.1809), his wife Sally Dodd (1814-1896) 
and their 8 children as living on Lot 8, Concession 6, in a 2 storey log house. It is 
possible that this house was present when Whiteoak purchased the property in 1849 and 
would therefore have been constructed pre-1849, probably by a member of the Helmke 
farnily. The log house was still standing at the time of the 1861 census. 

In 1870 Willia1n and Sally separated due to marital differences and Sally, along with 
Williarn Whiteoak's son-in-law, Thomas Duffield, was a\varded the use of the land and 
premises on the north part of the 72 acres (indicated as the second part of the Whiteoak' s 
property). It is interesting that the census of 1871 indicates that Williarn and Sally are 
again living together on the property with five of their children, suggesting that their 
marital situation had improved . 

In 1871 the Whiteoaks sold the larger south portion of the property to Jarnes Brander, 
farmer, of Pickering Township (Parts 1 and 3). In 1872 Brander acquired the balance of 
the 72 acres (the north 1/3 or Part 2) for a further $1500. The Illustrated Historical Atlas 
of 1878 notes Jas Brander as the owner of the for111er Whiteoak fa1·111. A building is 
shown near the front of the lot. 

Based on architectural style, building materials and assessment inforrnation, the brick 
section of the existing house was likely built by Jarnes Brander circa 1875. It is possible 
that the old log house was initially retained to serve as a kitchen wing for the new brick 
house, since a house of this size was not designed. to accoIUinodate a kitchen ~n4 must 
have always had a kitchen wing attached to it. At some point, the present kitchen wing 
was built using recycled materials, possibly salvaged from the log house. Certainly some 
of the lumber used in the construction of the rear wing is older than the brick part of the 
house, so it must have come from an earlier building or buildings. 

Brander sold the fann to Thomas Cann in 1879, who retained ownership through the rest 
of the 19th century. A half acre at the north west comer of the property, sold to Thomas 
Duffield through an agreement with Williarn Whiteoak in 1870, was not included. In 
1900, the farm \Vas leased by the executors of Thomas Cann to Richard Trick. HarTy 
Cann (possibly a son) was the owner into the early part of the 20th century. 

In 1920, Plan No. 2196 was created, subdividing the property along with a strip of land in 
Lot 9, Concession 6, imrnediately to the north. The plan shows Helen Avenue and a 
north-south street at its eastern end. The farmhouse, ba1·n and another outbuilding are 
illustrated on the plan, sited on a 25 acre parcel. On the north side of Helen A venue, but 
located on Lot 9, are a ba1·11 and silo. 

Architectural Attributes 

The dwelling located at 31 Helen A venue, is a modified L-plan formed by a two storey, 
brick rectangular block (the front or west part of the house) and a stone-clad, slightly 
lo\ver rear ( east) \Ving. A shed-roofed lean-to is located on the east wall of the rear wing. 
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The west part of the house appears to belong in f or1n and style to the third quarter of the 
19th century. It is similar in materials and design to the Hatrington House in Unionville 
(1873), but is a simplified version of the vernacular Italianate style. The exterior walls are 
of red brick, stretcher bond with radiating voussoirs in buff brick. The building rests on a 
fieldstone foundation that provides a full basement. The house is 2 storeys in height, 3 
bays across by 1 bay deep, with segmentally headed, 2/2 sash style windows and a 
transomed central front door within an early 20th century sunroom. The existing shutters 
are relatively recent in style and materials. The roof is a medium pitch hip, with 
projecting eaves and a plain boxed cornice. There is a heavy, single stack, internal brick 
chimney near the north west corner, but the remnants of an earlier chimney once located 
on the roof ridge can be seen in the attic . 

~ The rear.or east wing of the house appears in fonn to be of an earlier date of construction, 
but a close investigation of the underlying structure reveals that it was an addition to the 
brick house. The frame wing is almost entirely clad in a thin stone veneer with the east 
side upper gable wall clad in board and batten. The building is made up of recycled 
materials which may have been salvaged from the earlier house on the property. The rear 
wing began as a 1 Vi storey kitchen attached to the brick house. At some point, the knee 
walls were raised to create of full .2 storey height. 

The gable roof of the rear section is of a medium pitch with plain wood tri~ and an 
intemal, single-stack brick chimney at the.east gable end. The windows are flat-headed 
and rectangular with 2/2 pane division having plain wood trim and sill's. There are no -
windows on the east elevation. There is a shed-roofed lean-to addition at the extreme rear 
of the building, which runs the depth of the structure. On the south side is a small 
enclosed porch with shed roof. 

Contextual Attributes 

The James Brander House is of contextual significance as a reminder of the agricultural 
conununity that once surrounded the village of Unionville prior to the urbanization of the 
are.a that b~.w,n goring the latter h~lf of the 20th G~ntury._ _ . -
Sig11ificant Heritage Attributes to be conserved: • 

• 

1) All segmentally-headed 2/2 wood windows of the brick section of the house, with 
their associated wood trim and sills; 

2) Front door opening with its segmentally-headed opening for a transom light; 
3) Red and buff brickwork, including the radiating voussoirs over door and window 

• openings; 
4) Hip roof with wood soffits, fascia and associated trim; 
5) The single stack brick chimney at the north west corner of the roof; 
6) The fieldstone foundation; 
7) The rectangular shaped footprint of the building; 
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IDENTIFICATION 

Property: Ja1nes Brander House 

Legal Description: Part Lot 8, Concession 6 

Owners:  

Inventory Number: F6-2 

Assessment Roll Number: 220-365-00 

Date of Construction: c.1875 

Style of Architecture: Vernacular Italianate (main block) 
Vernacular Georgian (rear wing) 

Type of Structure: Residence 

Number of Storeys: 2 Storeys 
• 

Exterior Wall Material: Red and buff brick, stone veneer, board and. 
batten 

Special Features: Buff brick voussoirs 
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